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Juanita R. Brooks (CA SBN 75934)
Lisa M. Martens (CA SBN 195824)
Andrew M. Abrams (CA SBN 229698)
FISH & RICHARDSON P.C.

12390 El Camino Real

San Diego, California 92130
Telephone: (858) 678-5070
Facsimile: (858) 678-5099

Email: brooks @fr.com; martens @fr.com; abrams @fr.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
BBU, Inc., BIMBO BAKERIES USA, INC., ARNOLD PRODUCTS, INC., ARNOLD
SALES COMPANY, INC. and ARNOLD FOODS COMPANY, INC.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

/
BBU, INC,, a Delaware corporation, BIMBO Case m cv 1 7 8 7 DMS RBB

BAKERIES USA, INC,, a Delaware corporation,

ARNOLD PRODUCTS, INC., a Delaware COMPLAINT FOR:
corporation, ARNOLD SALES COMPANY,
INC., a Delaware corporation, and ARNOLD 1. Trademark Infringement - 15 U.S.C.
FOODS COMPANY, INC., a Delaware § 1114(1)
corporation 2. Trademark Infringement, Unfair
- Competition, and False Designation of
Pi , .
aintiffs Origin — 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)
V. 3. Unfair Competition — Cal. Bus, & Prof.

: Code §§ 17200 et seq.
SARA LEE CORPORATION, a Maryland

- 4. Common Law Trademark Infringement
corporation, SARA LEE B,AKERY GROUP, 5. Unfair Competition in Violation of
INC,, a Delaware corporation, EARTHGRAINS California Common Law and California
BAKING COMPANIES, INC.,, a Delaware Civil Code § 3249
corporation, and DOES 1-10, inclusive, ivil Code §

* | 6. Unjust Enrichment
Defendants.
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
" FILE BY FAX
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1 For their Complaint against defendants Sara Lee Corporation, Sara Lee Bakery

2 || Group, Inc., and EarthGrains Baking Companies, Inc. (hereinafter “Defendants”),

3 || plaintiffs BBU, Inc., Bimbo Bakeries USA, Inc., Amold Products, Inc., Arnold Sales

4 || Company, Inc., and Amold Foods Company, Inc. (hereinafter “Armold” or “Plaintiffs”)

5 || hereby state and allege as follows:

6

7 THE PARTIES

8 L. Plaintiff BBU, Inc. is a Delaware corporation having a principal place of

9 (| business at 255 Business Center Drive, Horsham, Pennsylvania, 19044,
10 2. Plaintiff Arnold Products, Inc. is a Delaware corporation having a
11 || principal place of business at 255 Business Center Drive, Horsham, Pennsylvania, 19044,
12 3. Plaintiff Bimbo Bakeries USA, Inc. is a Delaware corporation having a
13 ]} principal place of business at 255 Business Center Drive, Horsham, Pennsylvania, 19044,
14 4. Plaintiff Arnold Products, Inc. is a Delaware corporation having a
15 ([ principal place of business at 255 Business Center Drive, Horsham, Pennsylvania, 19044.
16 5. Plaintiff Armnold Sales Company, Inc. is a Delaware corporation having a
17 || principal place of business at 255 Business Center Drive, Horsham, Pennsylvania, 19044.
18 6. On information and belief, defendant Sara Lee Corporation isa Maryland
19 || corporation having a principal place of business at 3500 Lacey Road, Downer’s Grove,
20 || Hlinois 60515. |
21 7. On information and belief, defendant Sara Lee Bakery Group, Inc. is a
22 || Delaware corporation having a principal place of business at 8400 Maryland Ave., St.
23 {|Louis, Missouri 63105.
24 8. | On information and belief, defendant EarthGrains Baking Companies,
25 ||Inc. is a Delaware corporation having a principal place of business at 3500 Lacey Road,
26 || Downer’s Grove, Illinois 60515.
27
28
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NATURE OF THE ACTION

9. This action by Arnold seeks preliminary and permanent injunctive relief
and damages against Defendants’ willful infringement of Arnold’s trademark
SANDWICH THIN S, under the Lanham Trademark Act of 1946, as amended, Title 15,
United States Code, §§ 1051 et seq. (the “Lanham Act”), and for infringement and unfair
competition under Title 15, United States Code, § 1125(a), California common law and
California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200.

10.  Arnold, a leader in the baking industry, is committed to baking and selling
high quality baked goods. Among Arnold’s most popular brands is its SANDWICH
THINS bakery product.

11.  Defendants recently announced the upcoming and imminent launch of a
new line of bakery products under both the SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks.

12.  Defendants’ SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks are both identical
and confusingly similar to Amold’s SANDWICH THINS trademark, and Defendants
intentionally seek to trade off of the goodwill of Arnold’s SANDWICH THINS
trademark in the marketing, advertising, and forthcoming distribution of their new line of
bakery products.

13.  Unless Defendants are enjoined from launching this line of bakery
products under these marks which are identical and confusingly similar to Arnold’s
SANDWICH THINS mark, the SANDWICH THINS mark will be infringed, thereby
destroying the distinctive quality that Arnold has developed to the detriment of Arnold

and the public.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
14. This is a civil action arising under the Lanham Act, Title 15, United States

Code, §§ 1114 and 1125(a) and under the statutory law and common law of the State of

California. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1121 and

2 Case No.
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1 ([28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 (federal question jurisdiction), 1338(a) (trademark and unfair

2 {| competition), and supplemental jurisdiction over the state law claims pursuant to 28

3 || U.S.C. §§ 1338(b) and 1367(a).

4 15.  Personal jurisdiction over Defendants is vested and venue is proper in the

5 ] United States District Court for the Southern District of California pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

6 || § 1391 because a substantial part of the events giving rise to the claims herein occurred in

7 || this District. On information and belief Defendants are advertising, marketing,

8 || promoting, and preparing to sell goods under an infringing trademark in this District.

9 16.  On information and belief, Defendants have solicited grocery stores and
10 || retail outlets within this State and in this District using a trademark infringing Arold’s
11 || marks and Defendants thereby purposefully availed themselves of the privilege of doing
12 || business in this State and in this District.

13 17. Oninformation and belief, Defendants already sell other bakery products
14 || within this State and in this District and Defendants thereby purposefully availed

15 || themselves of the privilege of doing business in this State and in this District.

16 18. Defendants have announced their intent to sell a new bakery product

17 |{using a trademark infringing Arnold’s marks to customers located within this State and in
18 || this District using a trademark infringing Amold’s marks and Defendants thereby

19 || purposefully availed themselves of the privilege of doing business in this state and in this
20 || District.

21 19.  The claims alleged herein arise out of or are related to Defendants’ forum-
22 || related activities and the exercise of jurisdiction herein is otherwise reasonable. Personal
23 || jurisdiction is also proper over the Defendants in that the intentional and wrongful

24 || conduct described herein was directed at this District and at Arnold, who suffered

25 || damage in this District as a result of Defendants’ intentional conduct.

26 20.  Venue is proper in the United States District Court for the Southern

27 || District of California pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and (c), as the claims arise in this
28 3 Case No.
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District and Defendants, all corporations, are subject to personal jurisdiction in this

District.

FACTS

21.  Amold is a leading commercial bakery with a brand portfolio that includes
ARNOLD, OROWEAT, MRS BAIRD'’S, BIMBO, THOMAS, BOBOLI and many
others. Under these brands, Arnold offers high quality bakery products to an extensive

and diverse consumer group.

Arnold’s Valuable Trademark Rights
22. Amold has used and is using its SANDWICH THINS mark in commerce

on and in connection with the offering and selling of its bakery product and has
continuously sold such bakery product using the SANDWICH THINS mark since at least
as early as March 31, 2008.

23.  Amold’s SANDWICH THINS mark is prominently featured on its
product packaging. As shown below, the SANDWICH THINS mark appears on
Armold’s product packaging:

24.  Arnold sells bakery products under the SANDWICH THINS trademark
throughout the United States. Arnold extensively advertises and promotes its

SANDWICH THINS mark and the products sold thereunder.

4
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L 25.  Since Amold’s launch of the SANDWICH THINS bakery products in
2008, Amold has sold nearly 30 million units of SANDWICH THINS products,
generating over $80 million in sales.

26.  In addition to its common law rights in its SANDWICH THINS
trademark, Amold and its affiliates own a United States Trademark registration for
SANDWICH THINS.

27.  OnJune 18, 2008, Amold Products, Inc. filed United States Trademark
Application Serial No. 77/501,818 for the SANDWICH THINS mark. On June 16, 2009,

C 00 3 O v AR WM

the United States Patent and Trademark Office issued Registration No. 3,637,950 to

10 || Amold Products, Inc. for the SANDWICH THINS mark. A true and correct copy of the
11 }| USPTO online record for Registration No. 3,637,950 is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

12 28.  Amold's SANDWICH THINS trademark is distinctive and has become
13 || well known among consumers for Amold’s popular bakery product.

14 29.  Amold’s use and registration of the SANDWICH THINS trademark

15 || predates any use by Defendants of the marks SANDWICH THINS and THINS for a

16 || similar bakery product.

17
18 Defendants’ Wrongful Conduct
19 30.  Oninformation and belief, Defendants distributed multiple presentations

20 ||to a number of grocery stores and other retail outlets concerning the bakery products to

21 || be offered under both the SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks. A true and correct

22 || copy of a printout from Defendants’ THINS presentation is attached hereto as Exhibit B.
23 || A true and correct copy of Defendants’ SANDWICH THINS presentation is attached

24 || hereto as Exhibit C.

25 31. Defendants announced in these presentations that on September 14, 2009,

26 || they intend to launch a line of bakery products under the SANDWICH THINS and

27 || THINS marks. See Exhibits B and C.

28 |

5 Case No.
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1 32.  Defendants used Arnold’s registered SANDWICH THINS trademark to
2 || promote and advertise Defendants’ forthcoming bakery products. See Exhibit C. As
3 || shown below, Defendants used the SANDWICH THINS trademark to promote their
4 || bakery products:
5
6
7
8 o
9
10 ST
3 romr— o
13
14 33.  Specifically, Defendants intend to sell a directly competing bakery product
15 || using packaging which incorporates the THINS mark. See Exhibits B and C. As Shown
16 ||below, the THINS mark will appear on product packaging:
18 lTr';tlrnzducmg Eanhomms 1007 Natumn
19
20
21
22
23
24
25 34.  Defendants’ product packaging prominently displays THIN S as the
26 || predominant element. See Exhibits B and C.
27 35.  Defendants’ presentations specifically refer to Arnold’s product in
28 6 Case No.
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10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

marketing Defendants’ new product by stating that “Oroweat / Arnold Thins have
established awareness and sales for this product type.” See Exhibits B and C.

36.  Defendants’ presentations include data showing that Amold’s
SANDWICH THINS products currently enjoy 7% of the market share in their product
category and 73% of their customers are repeat customers. See Exhibits B and C.

37.  Defendants distribute their bakery products through the same grocery
stores and retail outlets as Arnold and its distributors. These grocery stores regularly
purchase SANDWICH THINS and other bakery products from Amold and its
distributors.

38.  Oninformation and belief Defendants’ bakery products offered under
either the SANDWICH THINS or THINS marks will be sold through the same grocery
stores and retail outlets as Armold’s SANDWICH THINS products.

39.  Oninformation and belief, Defendants’ bakery products offered under
either the SANDWICH THINS or THINS marks will be purchased by individual
consumers at various grocery stores and retail outlets. On information and belief, many
of these consumers are the very same customers who comprise Amold’s customer base.

40.  On information and belief, Defendants intend to depict their THINS mark
in such a way' as to emphasize the THINS mark over other elements displayed on product
packaging.

41.  Defendants’ use of the both the SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks
are likely to cause confusion as to whether Defendants’ goods originate from or are
sponsored by Arnold, or whether there is an association or affiliation between Defendants
and Amold.

42.  Amold has not consented to Defendants’ use of its SANDWICH THINS
mark, nor any mark comprised of THINS, nor has Arnold sponsored, endorsed or
approved the goods offered and promoted by Defendants.

43.  Oninformation and belief, the widely recognized and/or distinctive

7 Case No.
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1 (| SANDWICH THINS mark and the business of Arnold are known to Defendants and

2 || were known to Defendants at the time they announced the imminent launch of the THINS

3 || mark and began promoting goods under the THINS mark.

4 44.  Defendants’ announcement of the imminent launch of the SANDWICH

5 THIN S and THINS marks and their promotion of their competing product to grocery .

6 || stores and retail outlets occurred much later than Armold’s first use of the SANDWICH

7 || THINS mark.

8 45, On informatipn and belief, Defendants intend to adopt the SANDWICH

9 || THINS and THINS marks to capitalize on the goodwill of Arnold’s SANDWICH THINS
10 [{ products.
11 46.  On information and belief, Defendants intend to use the SANDWICH
12 || THINS and THINS marks on bakery products that are identical or highly similar goods to
13 |{the SANDWICH THINS products.
14 47.  Defendants’ promotion and sales of their goods under both the
15 || SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks are directed to business partners of Amold, as
16 || well as to consumers of Amold’s products, and are conducted through the same channels
17 || of trade as are used by Arnold to promote and sell its SANDWICH THINS line of bakery
18 || products.
19 48.  Defendants’ use of the SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks and
20 || Defendants’ actions described herein are likely to cause confusion, deception and/or
21 || mistake in the marketplace, the relevant industry, and all channels of trade for Arnold’s
22 || products.
23 49.  Defendants’ use of the SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks and their
24 || actions described herein have been, and continue to be, deliberate, willful, and with
25 || disregard to the rights of Amnold.
26 50.  Defendants’ continuing conduct constitutes an ongoing threat to Arnold
27 || and the public. Amnold has sustained and will continue to sustain irreparable injury as a
28

8 Case No.
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result of Defendants’ conduct, which injury is not compensable by the award of monetary
damages. Unless Defendants are restrained and enjoined from engaging in their

infringing conduct, Arnold will continue to suffer irreparable injury.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Trademark Infringement — 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1))

51.  Amold incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation in the
preceding parag}aphs.

52.  Prior to Defendants’ adoption and decision to launch the SANDWICH
THINS and THINS marks, Defendants either had actual notice and knowledge, or
constructive notice (pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1072), of Arnold’s ownership and
registration of the SANDWICH THINS mark.

53. On information and belief, Defendants were aware of Arnold’s business
and its SANDWICH THINS mark prior to Defendants’ decision to use and launch both
the SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks in connection with bakery products.

54.  On information and belief, in advertising and promoting the SANDWICH
THINS and THINS products, Defendants deliberately and willfully used the
SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks in an attempt to trade off of the goodwill,
reputation and selling power established by Arnold under the SANDWICH THINS mark,
and to create a false impression of association with Arnold.

55.  Oninformation and belief, Defendants’ imminent sale of bakery products
under both the SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks is a deliberate and willful attempt
to trade off of the goodwill, reputation and selling power established by Armold under the
SANDWICH THINS mark, and is an attempt to create a false irhpression of association
with Arnold.

56.  On information and belief, Defendants have advertised and promoted the

SANDWICH THINS and THINS products through the same channels of trade and to the

9

-260-0316
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1 |[same grocery stores and retail outlets as Arnold advertises and promotes its SANDWICH
2 || THINS products. ‘
3 57.  Oninformation and belief, Defendants’ bakery products sold under the
4 ||SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks will move through the same channels of trade,
5 || and will be offered‘ and/or sold through the same channels of distribution and to the same
6 || consumer groups as the goods that are offered and sold by Amold under the SANDWICH
7 || THINS mark.
'8 58.  Amold has not consented to Defendants’ use of the SANDWICH THINS
9 || and THINS marks.
10 59.  Defendants’ imminent unauthorized use of the SANDWICH THINS and
11 || THINS marks are likely to cause consumers to be confused as to the source, nature and
12 |[quality of the goods that Defendants will offer in connection with the SANDWICH
13 || THINS and THINS marks.
14 60.  Defendants’ unauthorized use of the term “THINS” as a key component of
15 || their product packaging will falsely indicate to consumers that Defendants’ goods
16 || originate from or are in some manner connected with, sponsored by, affiliated with, or
17 || related to Arnold, and/or the products of Arnold.
18 61.  Defendants’ imminent unauthorized use of the SANDWICH THINS and
19 || THINS marks, as set forth herein, facilitate the acceptance of Defendants’ goods
20 tﬁroughout the marketplace, not based on the quality of the goods provided by
21 |{Defendants, but on the association that the public is likely to make with Arnold and the
22 || reputation and goodwill associated with Arnold’s goods.
23 62.  Defendants’ unauthorized use of the SANDWICH THINS and THINS
24 || marks deprive Amold of the ability to control the quality of the goods marketed under
25 || these marks, and instead, places Arnold’s valuable reputation and goodwill into the hands
26 || of Defendants, over whom Arnold has no control.
27 63.  The aforementioned activities of Defendants are likely to cause confusion
28

10 Case No.
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or mistake, or to deceive consumers or potential consumers wishing to purchase Arnold’s
products, and are also likely to confuse consumers as to an affiliation between Amold
and Defendants.

64.  The aforementioned acts of Defendants constitute federal trademark
infringement in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1114.

65.  Arnold has been, is now, and will be irreparably harmed by Defendants’
aforementioned acts of infringement, and unless enjoined by the Court, Defendants will
continue to ihfrin ge upon the SANDWICH THINS mark. There is no adequate remedy
at law for the harm caused by the acts of infringement alleged herein.

66.  As adirect and proximate result of Defendants’ infringing conduct,
Arnold will suffer irreparable injury to its business reputation and goodwill for which no
adequate remedy exists at law, and will lose sales and profits in an amount not yet fully
ascertained.

67.  Defendants’ conduct complained of herein is malicious, fraudulent,
knowing, willful, and deliberate entitling Arnold to an accounting of any of Defendants’
profits, increased damages, and an award of its attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in

prosecuting this action under 15 U.S.C. § 1117.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(Trademark Infringement, Unfair Competition, and False
Designation of Origin — 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a

68. Arnold incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation in the
preceding paragraphs.

69.  Arnold is informed and believes that Defendants chose both the
SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks, and took the other actions alleged above, to
cause confusion or mistake, or to deceive the public as to the origin, sponsorship,

association or approval of the goods of Defendants, deliberately to pass off Defendants’

11
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1 ([ goods as those of Arnold, and/or to falsely imply an association with Amold.

70.  Defendants’ acts as alleged herein constitute, among other things, false
designations of origin, false or misleading descriptions of fact, or false or misleading
representations of fact which are likely to cause confusion or mistake, or to deceive the
public as to the origin, sponsorship, association or approval of the goods of Defendants.

71.  Defendants’ conduct constitutes trademark infringement and unfair
competition in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).

72.  Unless enjoined, Defendants will continue their infringing conduct.

O 00 3 O v A W

73.  As adirect and proximate result of Defendants’ infringing conduct,

10 || Amold will suffer irreparable injury to its business reputation and goodwill for which no
11 || adequate remedy exists at law, and will lose sales and profits in an amount not yet fully
12 || ascertained.

13 74, Defendants’ conduct complained of herein is malicious, fraudulent,

14 || knowing, willful, and deliberate entitling Arnold to an accounting of any of Defendants’
15 || profits, increased damages, and an award of its attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in

16 || prosecuting this action under 15 U.S.C. § 1117.

17

18 THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

19 (Unfair Unlawful and Deceptive Business Practices -

20 Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 et seq)

21 75.  Amold incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation in the

22 || preceding paragraphs.

23 76.  Defendants’ business practices alleged above are unfair and offend public
24 || policy as they are unlawful, unfair, unscrupulous, and substantially injurious to Arnqld
25 || and consumers.

26 77.  The above acts by Defendants constitute unfair competition and unfair

27 || business practices in violation of the Section 17200 et seq. of the California Business &

28

12 Case No.
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Professions Code, prohibiting unfair, unlawful and deceptive business acts.

78. Pursuant to California Business and Professions Code § 17203, Arnold is
entitled to enjoin these practices.

79.  Without injunctive relief, Amold has no means by which to control
Defendants’ deceptive and confusing use and advertising of its mark. Arnold is therefore
entitled to injunctive relief prohibiting Defendants from continuing such acts of unfair
competition, and appropriate restitution remedies, pursuant to California Business and

Professions Code § 17203.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Common Law Trademark Infringement)

80.  Arnold incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation in the
preceding paragraphs.

81.  Defendants’ unauthorized use of the SANDWICH THINS and THINS
marks in interstate commerce and in this judicial District in connection with the
promotion and offering of Defendants’ goods constitutes a false designation of origin, a
false and/or misleading description of fact, and/or a false or misleading representation of
fact which constitutes an infringement of Arnold’s trademark rights in and to the
SANDWICH THINS mark, and is likely to cause confusion, and mistake, and/or
deception as to the affiliation, connection or association of Defendants and Amold,
and/or as to the origin, sponsorship, or approval of Defendants’ goods by Amold.
Defendants’ actions have caused, and will continue to cause, irreparable harm to Arnold.

82.  Defendants’ imminent sale of its bakery products under both the
SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks in interstate commerce and in this judicial
District will constitute a false designation of origin, a false and/or misleading description
of fact, and/or a false or misleading representation of fact which infringes Amold’s

trademark rights in and to the SANDWICH THINS mark, and is likely to cause

13
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1 || confusion, and mistake, and/or deception as to the affiliation, connection or association of
Defendants and Arnold, and/or as to the origin, sponsorship, or approval of Defendants’

goods by Amold. Defendants’ actions will cause irreparable harm to Arnold.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Unfair Competition in Violation of California Common Law)

83. - Amold incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation in the

proceeding paragraphs.

O 00 9 O o AW N

84.  Defendants’ conduct, as alleged above, constitutes unfair competition

10 under California State common law. Defendants’ acts have resulted in the “passing off”
11 || of Defendants’ products as those of Amold’s, or as somehow related or assoéiated with,
12 || or sponsored or endorsed by, Arnold. |

13 85. By reason of these acts, Amnold has suffered and is suffering actual,

14 || permanent and irreparable injury, the extent of which is presently not known, and Amold
15 || will suffer continuing damage and irreparable injury unless Defendants are permanently
16 || enjoined from the use of the mark.

17 86.  Defendants’ actions have been willful, malicious and fraudulent with

18 || knowledge of the likelihood of confusion and deception and with intent to confuse and
19 || deceive, as alleged above. Therefore, Amold is entitled to recover punitive damages

20 }|under California Civil Code § 3294.

21
.22 SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
23 | (Unjust Enrichment)
24 87.  Amold incorporates herein by reference each and every allegation in the

25 || proceeding paragraphs.

26 88.  Defendants have received the benefits of Arnold’s trademarks without

27 || compensating Arnold for such benefits or paying Arnold any royalties for using Arnold’s
28

14 Case No.
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1 ||intellectual property.

2 89.  Defendants have unjustly retained the foregoing benefits.

3 90. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants have been unjustly enriched, and

4 || continue to be unjustly enriched, in an unknown amount, and Amold is entitled to

5 || restitution.

6

7 PRAYER FOR RELIEF

8 WHEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, Arnold respectfully requests

9 || that this Court enter an Order granting the following relief:
10 a) For judgment that the SANDWICH THINS mark will be infringed by Defendants
11 proposed use of the SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks;
12 b) Defendants have unfairly competed with Arnold in violation of 15 U.S.C. §
13 1125(a);
14 ¢) Defendants acts offend public policy and are unlawful, unfair and unscrupulous
15 and substantially injurious to Arnold and its customers in violation of §§ 17200 et
16 seq. of the California Business and Professions Code;
17 d) Defendants have unfairly competed with Arold in violation of California
18 common law;
19 e) Permanently enjoining Defendants and each of their agents, employees, servants,
20 officers, directors, successors in interest, heirs, assigns and all persons, firms or
21 corporations, acting by or under their authority, in active concert or privity or in
22 participation with it, from using the SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks, or
23 any confusingly similar marks on or in connection with Defendants’ goods; or
24 using any word, words, phrases, symbols, logos, or any combination of words or
25 symbol that would create a likelihood of confusion, mistake, or deception
26 therewith, including, without limitation, the SANDWICH THINS and THINS
27 marks, in connection with or in the marketing, offering, selling, licensing,
28 15 Case No.




8n7

O 00 3 O th & W N e

[ I & R & I & o I N i o e e T e T T o S S =

g)

h)

A

k)

ase 3:09'CV'01787'W Sdl}/s%{\%RsPlgE H&EEEL”SFE%WCES”%% 08/‘)9 Page 1761(3f2g090316

{displaying, advertising, or developing of Defendants’ goods;

Permanently enjoining Defendants and recalling from all their officers and all
others, -whether persons, firms, or corporations, acting by or under their authority,
in active concert or privity or in participation with Defendants, any material
containing the SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks and any word, words,
phrases, symbols, logos, and any combination of words or.symbols that would
create a likelihood of confusion, mistake and/or deception therewith, including,
without limitation, the SANDWICH THINS and THINS marks, in connection
with or in the marketing, offering, selling, licensing, displaying, advertising, or
developing of Defendants’ goods;

Permanently enjoining Defendants, their officers, agents, employees, and all
persons acting in concert with them, from infringing the SANDWICH THINS
mark and/or engaging in further such unlawful acts and from reaping any
additional commercial advantage from the misappropriation of the rights of
Amold and all affiliated and related companies of Arnold in the SANDWICH
THINS mark and the registration of this mark;

Requiring Defendants to destroy, at their sole and exclusive cost, all materials in
their possession or under their control that bear the SANDWICH THINS or
THINS marks or any confusingly similar mark;

For all actual damages sustained by Arnold as the result of Defendants’ acts of
infringement and/or dilution, together with prejudgment interest, according to
proof, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117;

For an accounting of the profits of Defendants resulting from their acts of
infringement pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117;

Such damages and profits to be trebled and awarded to Arnold pursuant to 15
U.S.C. § 1117 on the grounds that Defendants’ conduct has been willful,

deliberate and in bad faith;

16 ' Case No.
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1 1) For an award of attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117 or as otherwise
2 permitted by law;
3 m) For Arnold’s costs of suit, including its reasonable litigation expenses, pursuant-to
4 15US.C. § 1117;
5 n) Defendants be ordered to pay Amold damages for common law trademark
6 | infringement, unjust enrichment and unfair competition under California common
7 law;
8 0) Defendants be ordered to pay Arnold damages for unfair, unlawful and deceptive
9 business practices in violation of §§ 17200 et seq. of the California Business and
10 Professions Code;
11 p) Defendants be directed to file with this Court and serve on Arnold within thirty
12 (30) days after service of such injunction, a written report under oath pursuant to
13 15 U.S.C. § 1116 setting forth in detail the manner and form in which
14 Defendants’ have complied with the injunction; and
15 q) Granting Arnold such additional, other, or further relief as the Court deems just
16 and proper.
17 DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
18 Plaintiff demands trial by jury on all issues so triable.
19 || DATED: August 17, 2009 Respectfully submitted,
20 FISH & RICHARDSON 2.
21 ,_ |
By: y 4 . y
22 Juanita B/ Bfooks, ESq.
Lisa M. Martens, Esq.
23 Andrew M. Abrams, Esq.
24 Attorneys for Plaintiff
25 BBU, INC,,
BIMBO BAKERIES USA, INC.,
26 - ARNOLD PRODUCTS, INC.,
ARNOLD SALES COMPANY, INC,, and
27 ARNOLD FOODS COMPANY, INC.
28 17
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Int. Cl.: 30

Prior U.S. CL: 46 .
Reg. No. 3,637,950
United States Patent and Trademark Office Registered June 16, 2009

TRADEMARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER

SANDWICH THINS

ARNOLD PRODUCTS, INC. (DELAWARE COR- NO CLAIM IS MADE TO THE EXCLUSIVE

PORATION) RIGHT TO USE "SANDWICH", APART FROM THE
300 W. NORTH AVENUE MARK AS SHOWN,

NORTHLAKE, IL 60164
FOR: BREAD, IN CLASS 30 (U.S. CL. 46).
FIRST USE 3-31-2008; IN COMMERCE 3-31-2008. SER. NO. 77-501,818, FILED 6-18-2008.

THE MARK CONSISTS OF STANDARD CHAR-

ACTERS WITHOUT CLAIM TO ANY PARTICULAR
FONT, STYLE, SIZE, OR COLOR. ESTHER A. BORSUK, EXAMINING ATTORNEY

Exhibit A
Page 18
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